
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, August 5, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

Posted: August 1, 2014 
 

AGENDA 
 

The City of Traverse City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to or 
treatment or employment in, its programs or activities. Penny Hill, Assistant City Manager, 400 
Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan 49684, 922-4440, T.D.D., 922-4766, has been designated to 
coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements. If you are planning to attend and you 
have a disability requiring any special assistance at the meeting and/or if you have any concerns, please 
immediately notify the ADA Coordinator. 
 
Planning Commission 
c/o Russell Soyring, Planning Director 
400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, MI 49684 
231-922-4778 
 
1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
3.       ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. July 1, 2014 Regular Meeting and July 15, 2014 Study Session minutes (Approval 
recommended) 

 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of an amended request by Bonnie Adams, of 441 Fair Street, to 
vacate a portion of an alley located north of the 1400 block of Eighth Street (Action 
Requested) 
 



Planning Commission Agenda 
Page 2 
 

B. Public Hearing to consider an amendment to the Traverse City Code of Ordinances 
Sections 1320.07, Definitions;  1328.01 Open Space (OS) District Uses Allowed; 
1338.01 Hotel Resort (HR) District Uses Allowed; 1340.01 Office Service (C-1) 
District Uses Allowed; 1344.01 Community Center (C-3) District Uses Allowed; 
1350.01 Government/Public (GP) District Uses Allowed; and 1358.01 Hospital (H) 
Districts Uses Allowed; regarding recreational facilities.     

 
C. 2015 Street Projects- Review for consistency with Master Plan- (Action requested) 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 808 Carver- possible rezoning request- letter from Turning Leaf Inc. (Discussion) 
 
B. Housing and Building Committee proposed recommended changes to Accessory 

Dwelling Overlay Ordinance (Discussion) 
 

C. Possible establishment of a Parking Regulation Committee (Action Requested) 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE   

A. Boardman River Watershed Collective Impact Plan invitation 
 

B. Seventh Street handouts from Adrienne Rossi 
  
8. REPORTS 

A. City Commission- Commissioners Easterday and Werner 
B. Board of Zoning Appeals- Commissioner Bergman 
C. Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission- Commissioners Serratelli and 

Warren 
D. Planning Commission 

1. Housing Building Committee— Commissioner Bergman  
2. Active Transportation Committee—Commissioner Werner 
3. Master Plan Review Committee—Commissioners Bergman, Dow and 

Twietmeyer 
E. Planning Department—Mr. Soyring 

1. Capital Improvement Program—Mrs. Luick 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
TUESDAY, July 1, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 

PRESENT: Vice-Chairperson Jody Bergman, Commissioners Michael Dow, Jeanine 
Easterday, Janet Fleshman, Cecil McNally, Chairperson John Serratelli, Janice 
Warren and Tim Werner 

ABSENT: Commissioner Bill Twietmeyer. 
STAFF PRESENT: Russ Soyring, Planning Director; Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering 

Assistant 
 
1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER- Chairperson Serratelli called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2.  ROLL CALL   
 
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
Mr. Soyring announced that the Planning Commission is invited, along with the Downtown 
Development Authority, Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission, Board of 
Zoning Appeals, and Historic Districts Commission to attend the July 14, 2014 City 
Commission study session regarding a presentation by MEDC’s Redevelopment Ready 
Communities program. 
 
Mr. Soyring also announced that the July 15 study session topic will be regarding a 
discussion on overnight parking during the summer months. 
 
Chairperson Serratelli announced that the City Planning Department purchased a handheld 
pocket radar recorder. It can be used for traffic safety or neighborhood safety. The devise 
can be checked out by residents through the Planning Department.  

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. June 3, 2014 Regular Meeting and June 17, 2014 Special Meeting minutes (Approval 
recommended) 
 
Motion by Commissioner Warren, second by Commissioner Bergman that the June 
3, 2014 Regular Meeting and June 17, 2014 Special Meeting minutes be approved. 
 
Motion carried 8-0 (Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 1, 2014 
Page 2              
 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing to consider a Special Land Use Permit request by Sandy Oliver, 1012 
Centre Street, for a Group Daycare Home at the property mentioned (Action 
requested) 
 
Mrs. Luick summarized her June 26, 2014 memo and the Staff Report dated June 
27, 2014. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Easterday, second by Commissioner Warren, that 
the request for a Special Land Use Permit 14-SLUP-01 to allow for a Group 
Day Care Home at 1012 Centre Street be hereby approved by the Planning 
Commission provided that the general and specific standards in sections 
1364.02 and 1364.08 (i) respectively are met, any violations noted by the 
Fire Marshall are corrected, all necessary State licenses are obtained and 
“Approved Child Care Provider” identification is prominently displayed in a 
street side window; and further that the recommendation be passed along 
to the City Commission for consideration. 
 
A public Hearing was opened. The Public Hearing was closed.  
 
Motion carried 8-0 (Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 

 
B. Consideration of an amended request by Bonnie Adams, of 441 Fair Street, to 

vacate a portion of an alley located north of the 1400 block of Eighth Street (Action 
Requested) 
 
Mr. Soyring summarized his June 26, 2014 memo to the Commission and 
distributed a photograph of the alley vacation site. 
 
Commission discussion. 
 
The following members of the public commented on the topic: 

• Marion Fossil, of 4891 E. Mobile Trail, non-city resident and city property 
owner, opposes the request 

• Bonnie Adams, 441 Fair Street, city resident, made general comments 
 
Commission discussion. Commission consensus was to have staff verify how the 
vacated alley would be divided and to provide a better map depicting the city alley 
property in the alley vacation area and to discuss the matter again at the August 5, 
2014 regular meeting.  



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 1, 2014 
Page 3              
 

C. Recreation facilities ordinance amendment (For introduction and possibly 
scheduling a Public Hearing for August 5, 2014) 
 
Mr. Soyring summarized his June 26, 2014 memo to the Commission.  
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Warren, second by Commissioner McNally, that a Public 
Hearing be scheduled for August 5, 2014 to consider an amendment to the Traverse 
City Code of Ordinances Sections 1320.07, Definitions;  1328.01 Open Space (OS) 
District Uses Allowed; 1338.01 Hotel Resort (HR) District Uses Allowed; 1340.01 
Office Service (C-1) District Uses Allowed; 1342.01 Neighborhood Center (C-2) 
District Uses Allowed; 1344.01 Community Center (C-3) District Uses Allowed; 
1346.01 Regional Center (C-4) Districts Uses Allowed; 1347.01 Development (D) 
Districts Uses Allowed; 1348.01 Transportation (T) District Uses Allowed; 1350.01 
Government/Public (GP) District Uses Allowed; 1354.01 Industrial (I) District Uses 
Allowed; 1356.01 Northwestern Michigan College (NMC) Districts Uses Allowed; and 
1358.01 Hospital (H) Districts Uses Allowed; as described in the Planning Director’s 
memo dated June 26, 2014 regarding recreational facilities.      
 
Motion carried 8-0 (Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 

D. NACTO “Urban Street Design Guide” Possible Endorsement (Action Requested) 
 
Mr. Soyring explained that the City’s Infrastructure Strategy Policy was first adopted 
in 2009. The Complete Streets policy was adopted in 2011. If the Planning 
Commission agrees, then the NACTO  “Urban Street Design Guide” would be 
recommended to the City Commission to be included in the Infrastructure Strategy 
Policy. 
 
Commission discussion. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Bergman, second by Commissioner McNally, that 
the National Association of City Transportation Officials ‘Urban Street Design 
Guide’ be recommended by the Planning Commission for its inclusion as a 
technical resource as part of the City’s Infrastructure Strategy Policy and 
such recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission for their 
consideration.  
 
Commission discussion included checking to see if an electronic version of 
the book can be shared with the Planning and City Commissions. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
JULY 1, 2014 
Page 4              
 

Motion carried 8-0 (Commissioner Twietmeyer absent). 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS- None.  
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE - None.   
  
8. REPORTS 

A. City Commission- No report. 
B. Board of Zoning Appeals- No report. 
C. Grand Traverse Commons Joint Planning Commission- No report. 
D. Planning Commission 

1. Housing Building Committee— No report 
2. Active Transportation Committee—Commissioner Werner and Mrs. Luick 

reported regarding a recent presentation on the draft plan to MDOT’s North 
Region Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee. 

3. Master Plan Review Committee—No report. 
E. Planning Department—Mr. Soyring updated the Commission regarding parking 

needs in the Grand Traverse Commons  
1. Capital Improvement Program—No report. 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Commissioner Easterday inquired about the status of the Union Street reconstruction 
project and whether crosswalks, gateway features, additional landscaping or street 
furniture (as recommended in the Corridor Plan) are included in the project that is 
currently under construction. Mr. Sorying will provide a project update at the next 
meeting. 
 
Commissioner Easterday also inquired about the 8th Street Restriping Project. Mr. Soyring 
verified that the City Commission authorized a contract for a 3 lanes with bike lanes design. 
 
Commissioner Warren inquired if affordable housing would still be discussed by the 
Housing Building Committee since there is now a new committee of elected officials 
discussing the topic. Commission discussion. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT- Meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  



 
 

STUDY SESSION MINUTES 
TRAVERSE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION  

 
TUESDAY July 15, 2014 

7:30 P.M. 
Commission Chambers 

Governmental Center, 2nd Floor 
400 Boardman Avenue 

Traverse City, Michigan 49684 
 
PRESENT: Vice-Chairperson Jody Bergman, Commissioners Jeanine Easterday, Janet 

Fleshman, Cecil McNally, Chairperson John Serratelli, Bill Twietmeyer, Janice 
Warren, and Tim Werner 

ABSENT: Commissioner Michael Dow 
STAFF PRESENT: Russ Soyring, Planning Director; Missy Luick, Planning and Engineering 

Assistant; Tim Lodge, City Engineer 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER- The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Serratelli at 

7:30 p.m.  
 
2. ROLL CALL   
 
3. ANNOUNCEMENTS- Chairperson Serratelli announced that the August 19, 2014 Study 

Session will be cancelled. 
 

4. WEST FRONT STREET STREETSCAPE CONCEPTS (DISCUSSION) 
Mr. Soyring explained that the Commission already approved the West Front Street Bridge 
Replacement project (that included the streetscape) for consistency with the Master Plan 
on 3/18/14. However, now that the project is in design, there are some additional concepts 
that staff would like input from the Commission on. If the decision is to change the project 
from what was already approved, then a motion will be required at the August 5 meeting. 
 
Mr. Lodge explained that the rendering by Dave Weston was what was approved in March. 
The City has engaged the services of Nate Elkins, Influence Design Forum, to explore 
several alternative concepts for consideration by the Commission. 
 
Mr. Elkins gave a brief presentation and presented four options to the Commission for 
consideration. 
 
Commissioner Easterday left the meeting at 7:50 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Easterday returned at 7:54 p.m. 
 
Commission discussion. 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
STUDY SESSION 
JULY 15, 2014 
Page 2              
 

 
The following made public comments on the subject: 

• Sandy Cartwright- 607 N Elmwood Ave, made general comments 
• Adrienne Rossi, 312 W 7th Street, made general comments 

 
5. OVERNIGHT PARKING (DISCUSSION) 

Mr. Soyring introduced the topic and stated that the City Manager requested that the 
Planning Commission discuss the topic due to its land use impact. Mr. Soyring included 
parking restrictions in Traverse City and other communities in the packet for information. 
 
Commission discussion included willingness to try a temporary or trial overnight parking 
period or extending the on-street permit system. Discussion included exploring the existing 
street permit system that is in place on Railroad Ave and Cedar Street. If the city decides to 
move forward with overnight parking, discussion included keeping the overnight parking 
rules simple and not confusing like it tends to be in university cities. Discussion included 
questions about boat/RV/motor home storage on the street. Some Commissioners 
questioned the need for overnight parking in general and wondered if there is currently a 
problem that needs to be solved. 
 
The following made public comment on the subject: 

• Adrienne Rossi, 312 W 7th Street, made general comments 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT- None. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT- Meeting was adjourned at 9:09 p.m. 
 
 
  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Date: __________________________  ___________________________________ 

      Jan Warren, Secretary  



Page 1 of 2 

    
 Agenda Item No. 5A  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  August 5, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: Amended request from Bonnie Adams to vacate a portion 
of an unimproved alley on the 1400 Block of Eighth Street 

 
                 DATE:  August 1, 2014 
 
In November 2013, the Planning Commission considered a request by Bonnie Adams, 441 Fair 
Street, to vacate a portion of unimproved alley near the corner of 8th and Fair Streets.  The alley 
requested to be vacated provides vehicular access to 449 Fair Street and could provide formal 
access to 1409 East Eighth Street. 1409 East Eighth Street is served by a driveway on East Eighth 
Street. The alley falls within a TC-3 Traditional Neighborhood. 
 
Last year, City Departments reviewed the request and were supportive provided that utility 
easements are provided on the vacated portion of the alley.  The Planning Department was 
supportive of the request provided an ingress/egress easements are recorded for 449 Fair 
Street and 1409 East Eighth Street.  However, due to the difficulty providing access for 449 Fair 
and 1409 8th St by vacating the entire alley, Ms. Adams, upon consultation with Russ Soyring 
and Lauren Trible-Laucht, has amended her alley vacation request to be only the northern ½ of 
the alley (see attached map), thus ingress/egress for 449 Fair and 1409 E. Eighth Street are still 
provided by the remaining southern ½ of the alley.  
 
City Departments reviewed the amended request and are supportive provided that utility 
easements are provided on the vacated portion of the alley. 
 
At the July 1, 2014 Planning Commission meeting staff was asked to verify how the vacated 
alley would be divided and to provide a better map depicting the subject city alleyway.  After 
conferring with Lauren Trible-Laucht, City Attorney if the alley is vacated as shown in the 
highlighted area on the attached map, the vacated portion of the alleyway would go entirely to 
the parcel addressed 441 Fair Street.  Staff was also able to determine that should a person 
access property at 1409 East Eighth Street via the alley, it is theoretically possible to turn a full 
size vehicle with a 20-foot boat on a trailer around in the rear yard.   This assumes any trees or 
other obstructions are removed. 
 
The Michigan Municipal Planning Act states that a master plan shall include those subjects that 
reasonably can be considered as pertinent to the future development of the planning 
jurisdiction.  Included in the list of subjects is the vacating or extension of streets.  The Traverse 
City Master Plan mentions alleys as part of the infrastructure that is characteristic of a TC-3 
Neighborhood.  Although, formal review by the Planning Commission is not required, as a 
matter of practice, the Planning Commission has reviewed street and alley vacations since it 



Page 2 of 2 

impacts land use and circulation patterns.  According to the Planning Commission Rules and 
Procedures, the “(Planning) Commission may hold a public hearing as is deemed advisable for 
public street and alley vacations and openings.” The City Commission is the body that formally 
makes a decision by resolution after holding a public hearing. The Planning Department is 
interested in receiving input from the Planning Commission on this matter.   
 
If the Planning Commission is interested in holding a public hearing on this vacation request the 
following motion is appropriate:   
 

I move that the request from Bonnie Adams, of 441 Fair Street, to 
vacate a portion of an east/west alley north of the 1400 block of  8th 
Street be introduced and scheduled for a Public Hearing on September 
3, 2014. 

 
If the Planning Commission concludes a public hearing is not necessary, the Planning 
Commission can formally make a recommendation to vacate or not vacate in a form of a 
motion. Such as: 
 
Approval: 

I move that the request from Bonnie Adams, of 441 Fair Street, to 
vacate a portion of an east/west alley north of the 1400 block of East 8th 
Street provided utility easements are provided be hereby approved by 
the Planning Commission and such recommendation be forwarded to 
the City Commission for their consideration. 

 
Denial: 

I move that the request from Bonnie Adams, of 441 Fair Street, to 
vacate a portion of an east/west alley north of the 1400 block of East 8th 
Street be hereby denied by the Planning Commission and such 
recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission for their 
consideration. 

 
Attachment: Map of Area 
 
RAS/mll 





Agenda Item No.   5B  
 

              Communication to the Planning Commission  
           
    
      FOR THE MEETING OF:  AUGUST 5, 2014 
 
      FROM:  RUSS SOYRING, PLANNING DIRECTOR 
 

SUBJECT: RECREATIONAL FACILITIES ORDINANCE AMENDMENT PUBLIC 
HEARING 

 
       DATE:  AUGUST 1, 2014 
 
At the June 17 and July 1 Planning Commission meetings, the Commission discussed possible 
amendments regarding regulations for recreational uses.  At the July 1 meeting, the Commission set 
a public hearing for August 5.  
 
Recreational facilities currently are allowed in OS (Open Space) and GP (Government Public) Districts 
and are defined as a “public or private non-profit facility for athletic activities such as ice arenas, 
stadiums, indoor sports areas, community recreation centers, indoor and outdoor swimming 
pools.” 
 
“Amusement and recreational services” are allowed in the C-3 (Community Center) and C-4 
(Regional Center) districts.  Recreational services are not defined in the zoning code so staff relies on 
the Standard Industrial Classification Manual as an interpretative guide.  This guide states this 
category of uses “includes establishments engaged in providing amusement or entertainment 
services, not elsewhere classified.” 
 
The Zoning Code also regulates Mechanical amusement arcades, athletic fields and golf courses.  
Mechanical Arcades are allowed with conditions and limitations in the C-3 and C-4 Districts.  See 
section 1344.01.  Athletic fields and golf courses are allowed in the R Districts and any district that 
allows R District uses such the C Districts. 
 
A brief summary of the proposed recreational facility amendments to the Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Amend the definition of “Recreational facilities” to read, “Recreational facilities means 
buildings or grounds, excluding amusement parks where a variety of sport or exercise 
activities are offered.”  

 
2.  Add “Recreation Facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less” to all zoning 

districts (OS, HR, C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, D, T, GP, I, NMC and H) except for the R Districts. 
 

3.  Eliminate “Amusement and recreation services” as a use listed in the C-3 and C-4 Districts.  
(It is confusing to have both “Recreational facilities” and “Amusement and recreation 
services” listed as a permitted uses.) 

 



4.  Eliminate “Mechanical amusement arcades” with the associated conditions in the C-3 and C-
4 Districts.   Mechanical amusement arcades would be incorporated as a use by right under 
the revised Recreational facility definition. 

 
Recreational facilities with more than 200 seats for spectators could be allowed by Special Land Use 
Permit or allowed by right with specific conditions.  Stadiums have unique traffic, parking, lighting 
and sound issues and would be best handled by creating a special district with a campus plan, an 
overlay district or Special Land Use Permit. Amusement parks could also be allowed by Special Land 
Use Permit. Special Land Use Permit regulations for stadiums and amusement parks are not included 
in the current ordinance amendment, but could be considered at a future time if the Commission 
feels it is necessary. 
 
Following the public hearing, if you are in agreement with the suggested amendments, the following 
motion would be appropriate: 
 
I move that an amendment to the Traverse City Code of Ordinances Sections 1320.07, Definitions;  
1328.01 Open Space (OS) District Uses Allowed; 1338.01 Hotel Resort (HR) District Uses Allowed; 
1340.01 Office Service (C-1) District Uses Allowed; 1344.01 Community Center (C-3) District Uses 
Allowed; 1350.01 Government/Public (GP) District Uses Allowed; and 1358.01 Hospital (H) Districts 
Uses Allowed; regarding recreational facilities be recommended by the Planning Commission and 
such recommendation be forwarded to the City Commission for their consideration. 
  
 



TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY USE ALLOWED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Open Space District Section 1328.01, Uses allowed, of the Zoning Code of the Traverse City 
Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
  

 

1328.01 USES ALLOWED. 
The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are allowed in the Open 
Space District, with buildings less than 3,000 square feet in gross floor area: 

• Airport clear zones;     
• Athletic fields;      
• Boat houses;      
• Boat liveries;      
• Cultural facilities; 
• Community Gardens;  
• Essential services without buildings; 
• Golf Courses 
• Marinas 
• Outdoor public swimming pools 
• Parks 
• Playgrounds 
• Recreational Facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less 
• Theaters in municipality owned buildings built prior to 2013 

 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 



Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 
 



TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY USE ALLOWED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Hotel Resort District Section 1338.01, Uses allowed, of the Zoning Code of the Traverse City 
Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

 
1338.01 USES ALLOWED. 
The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are allowed in the Hotel 
Resort District: 

• R-29 District uses; 
• Lodging facilities; 
• Offices, and retail shops provided the total floor area of the business or business within a 

building does not exceed 6,000 square feet in gross floor area on one level; 
• Recreational Facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less. 
• Restaurants, family or fine, banquet or meeting rooms, but not drive-ins or drive-throughs 

and not exceeding 6,000 square feet in gross floor area. 
• Drinking places without entertainment, up to 6,000 square feet gross floor area; 
• Drinking places with entertainment if not adjacent to, abutting or across an alley from a 

residential district. 
• Vacation Home Rentals maintaining a City Vacation Home Rental license.  
• Veterinary Services, without outdoor runs. 

 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 



 
 

TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY USE ALLOWED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Office Service District Section 1340 .01, Uses allowed, of the Zoning Code of the Traverse City 
Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 
1340.01 USES ALLOWED. 
The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are allowed in the Office 
Service District: 

• R-29 District uses; 
• Art galleries;  
• Business services; 
• Educational services, except schools; 
• Engineering, accounting, research, management & related services except testing and 

laboratory services;  
• Finance, insurance and real estate services; 
• Funeral services, excepting crematories; 
• Health services except hospitals, sales and rentals; 
• Legal services; 
• Mailing services; 
• Membership organizations; 
• Offices; 
• Personal services, including walk-in laundry and dry cleaning pick-up stations, but laundry 

cleaning and garment services are not allowed and without drive-throughs; 
• Places of worship; 
• Public administration, except correctional institutions; 
• Recreational Facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less. 
• Repair services - watch, clock and jewelry; 
• Repair services - reupholstery and furniture; 
• Security services exclusive of sales and installation; 
• Social services; 
• Vacation Home Rentals maintaining a City Vacation Home Rental license; 
• Veterinary Services, without outdoor runs. 

 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 



Michael Estes, Mayor 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY USE ALLOWED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Community Center Districts Section 1344.01, Uses allowed, of the Zoning Code of the 
Traverse City Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 
1344.01 USES ALLOWED. 
The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are allowed in the 
Community Center district: 
 

• HR District uses; 
• C-2 District uses; 
• Amusement and recreation services (see mechanical amusement arcades below); 
• Communication establishments;  
• Contractors, with no outside storage; 
• Drinking places with entertainment; 
• Equipment rental and leasing; 
• Finance services, including those having drive throughs subject to the standards of Section 

1374.06, Drive-throughs; 
• Kennels, provided no that no building, open kennel or exercise runway is closer than 200 feet 

from a Residential District; 
• Mechanical amusement arcades subject to the following: 

(1) All necessary licenses are obtained and maintained.   
(2) There is in physical attendance at all times of operation a minimum of one adult 

employee whose sole responsibility is to supervise the conduct of patrons on or near 
the premises. 

(3) Suitable ventilation, fire protection measures and adequate lighting inside and outside 
the premises are provided for the safety of patrons and the public as required by the 
Fire Marshal. 

(4) One bicycle rack per mechanical amusement device is provided on-site and located 
subject to the approval of the Planning Director. 

(5) There is not more than one arcade in a face block, and in no case shall an arcade be 
located closer than 600 feet to any existing arcade or amusement park.     

• Medical Marihuana Collective meeting the following requirements: 
(1) Use and transfer of Medical Marihuana shall comply at all times with the Michigan 

Medical Marihuana Act and the General Rules of the Michigan Department of 
Community Health, as they may be amended from time to time; 

(2) Transfer of Medical Marihuana shall be only allowed to a Qualifying Patient directly 
in person by his or her Registered Primary Caregiver or by another Qualifying Patient 
as allowed by the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act and the General Rules of the 
Michigan Department of Community Health, as they may be amended from time to 
time. 

(3) The Collective shall not be in operation between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 
a.m. 

(4) No Medical Marihuana Cultivation shall occur on the parcel. 
(5) Except for parents or guardians of a Qualifying Patient and the Owner or staff of the 



facility, persons other than a Qualifying Patient or Primary Caregiver shall be not 
permitted within the Collective when Medical Marihuana is being transferred or 
used. 

(6) A Qualifying Patient under the age of 18 shall be accompanied by a parent or 
guardian and notice of such shall be conspicuously posted. 

(7) A Medical Marihuana Collective shall not be located within a 1,000 foot radius from 
any existing School. 

(8) A Medical Marihuana Collective shall not be located within 1000 feet from another 
existing Collective. 

(9) An Owner or Operator of a Medical Marihuana Collective shall not have been 
convicted of a felony involving controlled substances. 

(10) The name and address of all persons with an ownership interest in the Medical 
Marihuana Collective and all Operators of the Medical Marihuana Collective shall be 
provided to the Zoning Administrator at least ten (10) business days prior to opening 
the Medical Marihuana Collective and least ten (10) business days prior to when a 
new person owns or operates the Medical Marihuana Collective. 

• Microbrewery 
• Motorized vehicle dealers, mobile home dealers, watercraft dealers and recreational vehicle 

dealers subject to the following conditions: 
(1) All outdoor display and storage in front or on the side of a building shall meet 

landscape requirements for parking areas. 
(2) Outdoor display areas shall be differentiated from parking areas using contrasting 

surface material and shall be designated on a site plan. 
(3) Any display platforms shall not be elevated more than three feet higher than the 

adjacent public right of way. 
• Personal services, including those having drive-throughs subject to the standards of Section 

1374.06, Drive-throughs; 
• Pet boarding or pet grooming services, provided that no building, open kennel or exercise 

runway is closer than 200 feet from an R-District. 
• Printing (commercial); 
• Repair services, miscellaneous; 
• Restaurants, family, fine and fast, including drive-ins and drive-throughs accessory to an on-

site, indoor, full service restaurant and including the parking requirements of Chapter 1372, 
Landscaping and Section 1374.06, Drive-throughs: 

• Retail trade; 
• Service stations and repair shops (except tire retreading) with or without fuel dispensing; 
• Theaters, except outdoor; 
• Vehicle wash facilities subject to the following standards: 

(1) Customer stacking space shall be provided at a rate of three spaces per bay or wash 
area for a stationary-type (coin-operated) system, and eight spaces per bay for an 
automatic system. 

(2) Customer stacking spaces shall be located and arranged to preclude obstruction of 
traffic flow on the public right-of-way or overhang and the public sidewalk. 

(3) Grates the full width of the driveway shall be provided at the exits to intercept and 
collect excess water and prevent its spread onto the public right of way. 

(4) A 35 foot setback is required from the property line where the primary exit for the 
vehicle was facility is made.  All other setbacks shall conform to the district 
requirements. 

(5) All operations connected with this facility shall be conducted within the buildings, 
except for vacuuming, so as to minimize the effect of noise and moisture on 
surrounding areas. 

(6) Where an auto wash is adjoining residential property or is separated from such 



property by a public alley, there shall be provided a continuous decorative screenwall 
of not less than five feet or more than six feet in height. 

(7) Ingress and egress shall be on an arterial or collector street, except where the 
Planning Commission determines public welfare or safety would be best served by 
allowing other means of ingress or egress. 

• Veterinary services, provided that no building, open kennel or exercise runway is closer than 
200 feet from a R-District; 

• Warehousing.  
 

The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 



 
TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY USE ALLOWED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Government/Public Districts Section 1350.01, Uses allowed, of the Zoning Code of the 
Traverse City Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 
1350.01 USES ALLOWED. 

(a) Master Site and Facilities Plan.  When applying for a land use permit, the governmental 
unit shall present a Master Site and Facilities Plan for the current uses on all contiguous 
property owned by that governmental unit and all anticipated uses within a minimum of 
the next five years.  This plan shall show adjacent properties sufficiently to identify 
surrounding uses and potential impacts on them by the applicant’s plan and shall conform 
to the requirements of Traverse City Code Section 1366.08, Master Site and Facilities.  

(b) Uses allowed in the GP district.  The following uses of land and buildings, together with 
accessory uses, are allowed in the Government/Public District: 

• Administration of economic programs; 
• Administration of human resource programs; 
• Athletic fields; 
• Auditoriums; 
• Cemeteries; 
• Community Gardens; 
• Cultural facilities; 
• Electrical, combination electric and gas and other utility services, water supply, 

sewage systems (except gas storage and refuse);  
• Environmental quality & housing program administration 
• Essential services and essential services with buildings; 
• Executive, legislative & general government uses except correctional institutions; 
• Finance, taxation & monetary services, public; 
• Health services except hospitals, sales and rentals; 
• Libraries; 
• National security & international affairs; 
• Parking structures, public or private, subject to the following standards: 

(1) Parking structures shall be designed to have horizontal versus stepped or 
sloping levels at areas of public view.  All ramping shall be concealed 
from public view. 

(2) Openings shall not exceed 60 percent of the total wall surface.  The shape 
of openings shall be vertical or square.  

(3) Materials for parking structures shall follow the same restrictions as 
buildings; 

(4) Sloped roofs are not required for parking decks, however: 
A. The upper and lowest level of parking shall incorporate sufficient 

screening to shield cars from public view. 
B. Parapet treatment is required to terminate the deck and give proper 

architectural finish to the structure.  Cornices, overhangs and other 
devices which are consistent with the language of historical 



buildings may be employed.   
(5) The design of parking decks shall be consistent with the design of 

historical buildings in the area. 
• Parks; 
• Places of Worship; 
• Playgrounds; 
• Public works facilities; 
• Recreational facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less; 
• Social services; 
• Transitional housing; 
• United States Postal Service. 

 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 
 



TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY USE ALLOWED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That Hospital Districts Section 1358.01, Uses allowed, of the Zoning Code of the Traverse City 
Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 
1358.01  USES ALLOWED. 
(A) Master Site Facilities Plan.  When applying for a land use permit for H-2 District 

properties, the applicant shall present a Master Site and Facilities Plan for the current uses 
on all contiguous property owned by applicant and all anticipated uses within a minimum 
of the next five years.  This plan shall show adjacent properties sufficiently to identify 
surrounding uses and potential impacts on them by the applicant's plan and shall conform 
to the requirements of Traverse City Code Section 1366.08, Master Site and Facilities 
Plans. 

(B) H-1 District.  The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are 
allowed in the H-1 Hospital District: 

• Community Gardens; 
• Dormitories; 
• Dwellings, multiple family, up to 29 dwelling units per acre; 
• Group day care homes; 
• Florists; 
• Health services, including clinics of doctors and dentists; 
• Hospitality houses; 
• Medical Marihuana Collective meeting the following requirements: 

(1) Use and transfer of Medical Marihuana shall comply at all times 
with the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act and the General Rules of 
the Michigan Department of Community Health, as they may be 
amended from time to time; 

(2) Transfer of Medical Marihuana shall be only allowed to a 
Qualifying Patient directly in person by his or her Registered Primary 
Caregiver or by another Qualifying Patient as allowed by the 
Michigan Medical Marihuana Act and the General Rules of the 
Michigan Department of Community Health, as they may be 
amended from time to time. 

(3) The Collective shall not be in operation between the hours of 10:00 
p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

(4) No Medical Marihuana Cultivation shall occur on the parcel. 
(5) Except for parents or guardians of a Qualifying Patient and the 

Owner or staff of the facility, persons other than a Qualifying Patient 
or Primary Caregiver shall be not permitted within the Collective 
when Medical Marihuana is being transferred or used. 

(6) A Qualifying Patient under the age of 18 shall be accompanied by a 
parent or guardian and notice of such shall be conspicuously posted. 

(7) A Medical Marihuana Collective shall not be located within a 
1,000 foot radius from any existing School. 

(8) A Medical Marihuana Collective shall not be located within 1000 
feet from another existing Collective. 



(9) An Owner or Operator of a Medical Marihuana Collective shall not 
have been convicted of a felony involving controlled substances. 

(10) The name and address of all persons with an ownership interest in 
the Medical Marihuana Collective and all Operators of the Medical 
Marihuana Collective shall be provided to the Zoning Administrator 
at least ten (10) business days prior to opening the Medical 
Marihuana Collective and least ten (10) business days prior to when 
a new person owns or operates the Medical Marihuana Collective. 

• Recreational Facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less. 
• Residential care and treatment facilities. 

The following uses, if they meet the requirements of an accessory use, except that they need not 
be in the same building or on the same lot: 

• Duplicating, mailing, stenographic and office services no larger than 2,000 square 
feet gross floor area; 

• Schools for the handicapped; 
• Educational services to the public related to health care; 
• Financial institutions with no drive-throughs; 
• Gift shops no larger than 2,000 square feet gross floor area; 
• Orthopedic stores; 
• Pharmacies no larger than 2,000 square feet gross floor area; 
• Places of worship; 
• Restaurants, family, fine and fast, under 2,000 square feet in gross floor  
• area without drive-throughs or drive-ins; 
• Social services; 
• Veterinary Services, without outdoor runs 

(C) H-2 District.  The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are 
allowed in the H-2 District: 

• H-1 District uses; 
• Health services; 
• Hospitality houses; 
• Hospitals and medical centers; 
• Medical care facilities; 
• Parking structures, public or private, subject to the following standards: 

(1) Parking structures shall be designed to have horizontal versus stepped or 
sloping levels at areas of public view.  All ramping shall be concealed 
from public view. 

(2) Openings shall not exceed 60 percent of the total wall surface. Openings 
shall be vertical or square.  

(3) Sloped roofs are not required for parking structures, however: 
A. The upper and lowest level of parking shall incorporate sufficient 

screening to shield cars from public view.         
B. Parapet treatment is required to terminate the deck and give proper 

architectural finish to the structure.  Cornices, overhangs and other 
devices which are consistent with the design of historical buildings 
may be employed.   

(4) The design of parking decks shall be complementary to the design of 
historical buildings in the area. 

• Recreational Facilities with spectator seating capacity of 200 or less. 
• Residential care and treatment facilities. 

 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 



I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 
 

 
 



TRAVERSE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT NO. ______ 
 Effective date: _______________ 
 
TITLE: RECREATIONAL FACILITY DEFINITION AMENDMENT AND ELIMINATION 

OF THE DEFINITION FOR MECHANICAL AMUSEMENT ARCADES 
 
THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY ORDAINS: 
 
That General Provisions and Definitions Section 1320.07, Definitions, of the Zoning Code of the 
Traverse City Code of Ordinances, be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
  

 

1320.07 DEFINITIONS. 
As used in this Chapter: 
Abutting means a lot or parcel which shares a common border with the subject lot or parcel. 
Accessory building means a building or structure customarily incidental and subordinate to the 
principal building and located on the same lot as and spacially separated from the principal 
building.  
Accessory dwelling unit means a secondary, self-contained dwelling allowed only in conjunction 
with a detached single family dwelling. It is subordinate in size, location and appearance to the 
primary detached single-family dwelling.  An accessory dwelling unit generally has its own 
outside entrance and always has a separate kitchen, bathroom and sleeping area.  It may be 
located within, attached to or detached from the primary single family dwelling. 
Accessory use means a use customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use of the land 
or building and located on the same lot as the principal use.   
Adult Foster Care Family Home means a private residence with the approved capacity to 
receive not more than 6 adults who shall be provided foster care for 5 or more days a week and 
for 2 or more consecutive weeks. The adult foster care family home State licensee shall be a 
member of the household and an occupant of the residence.  
Adult foster care small group home means a State licensed adult foster care facility with the 
approved capacity for not more than 12 adult residents to be provided foster care. 
Affordable housing means housing units for eligible low-income households where the occupant 
is paying no more than 30% of gross income for housing costs.  
Aggrieved person means a person who has suffered a substantial damage from a zoning decision 
not in common to other property owners similarly situated, and who has actively opposed the 
decision in question. 
Airport terminal means the main passenger location of an airport and includes all office, hotel 
and retail uses commonly occurring at such locations. 
Alley means a way which functions primarily as a service corridor and provides access to 
properties abutting thereon.  "Alley" does not mean "street". 
Alteration means any change, addition or modification in construction or type of occupancy; any 
change in the structural members of a building, such as walls or partitions, columns, beams or 
girders. 
Basement means that portion of a building which is partly or wholly below finished grade, but so 
located that the vertical distance from the average grade to the floor is greater than the vertical 
distance from the average grade to the ceiling.  A basement, as defined herein, shall not be 
counted as a story (see Figure 1-1).  A cellar is a basement. 
Berm means a constructed mound of earth rising to an elevation above the adjacent ground level 
of the site where located which contributes to the visual screening of the area behind the berm.  
Block means a unit of land bounded by streets or by a combination of streets and public land, 
railroad rights-of-way, waterways or any other barrier to the continuity of development.  
Block, face. "Face block" means that portion of a block or tract of land facing the same side of a 



single street and lying between the closest intersecting streets. 
Boat house means an enclosed or partially enclosed structure designed for the use and storage of 
private watercraft and marine equipment. 
Boat livery means any structure, site or tract of land utilized for the storage, servicing, docking or 
rental of watercraft for a fee. 
Brew pub means a facility as defined such by the State of Michigan.   
Building means any structure designed or built for the enclosure, shelter or protection of persons, 
animals, chattels or property of any kind.  
Building, height of.  See "Height of building". 
Building, principal.  "Principal building" means a building within which is conducted the main 
or principal use of the lot upon which it is located. 
Cemetery means property, including crematories, mausoleums, and/or columbariums, used or 
intended to be used solely for the perpetual interment of deceased human beings or household 
pets. 
Clinic means an establishment where human patients who are not lodged overnight are admitted 
for examination and treatment by a group of physicians or dentists or similar professions. 
Club means an organization of persons for special purposes or for the promulgation of sports, 
arts, science, literature, politics, agriculture or similar activities, but not operated for profit and 
open only to members and not the public. 
Cluster means a development design technique that concentrates building on a portion of the site 
to allow the remaining land to be used for recreation, common open space and preservation of 
environmentally sensitive features. 
Communication Antenna means a device, dish or array used to transmit or receive 
telecommunications signals mounted on a communication tower, building or structure that is 
greater than one square meter in a residential district or two square meters in a non-residential 
district. Antenna does not include federally-licensed amateur radio station, television or radio 
receive-only antennas or antennas used solely for personal use. Communication antennas are not 
“essential services,” public utilities or private utilities. 
Communication tower or tower means any structure that is primarily designed and constructed 
for the purpose of supporting one or more antennas for telecommunications, radio and similar 
communication purposes, including self-supporting lattice towers, guyed towers, or monopole 
towers. The term includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers, common-
carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, alternative tower structures, and the like. 
Communication towers are not “essential services,” public utilities or private utilities. 
Community Garden means a parcel gardened collectively by a group of people.     

Convenience store means a retail establishment offering for sale prepackaged food products, 
household items and other goods commonly associated with the same and having a gross floor 
area of less than 5,000 square feet. 
Country club.  See "golf course".              
Critical root zone means a circular area surrounding a tree, the radius of which is measured 
outward from the trunk of a tree one foot for each one inch of diameter at breast height. The 
critical root zone shall also extend to a depth of four feet below the natural surface ground level. 
Cultural facilities means facilities for activities for the preservation and enhancement for the 
cultural well-being of the community. 
Development means all structures and other modifications of the natural landscape above and 
below ground or water on a particular site. 
Diameter at breast height means the diameter of a tree trunk in inches measured by diameter at 
four and one-half feet (4.5') above the ground. 
District means a section of the City for which the zoning regulations governing the use of 
buildings and premises, the height of buildings, setbacks and the intensity of use are uniform. 
Drive-in means an establishment which by design, physical facilities, service, or by  packaging 
procedures encourages or permits customers to receive services or obtain goods while remaining 
in their motor vehicles. 



Drive-through means an establishment which by design, physical facilities, service, or by 
packaging procedures encourages or permits customers to receive service or obtain goods 
intended to be consumed off-premises. 
Dripline means an imaginary vertical line extending downward from the outermost tips of the 
tree branches to the ground. 
Driveway means a means of access for vehicles from a street, approved alley, across a lot or 
parcel to a parking or loading area, garage, dwelling or other structure or area on the same lot. 
Driveway, Service means a point of access solely for the use of vehicles designed to load and 
unload trash receptacles three cubic yards or more in size. 
Dwelling means any building or portion thereof which is designed for or used exclusively for 
residential purposes and containing one or more dwelling units. 
Dwelling, multiple family.  "Multiple family dwelling" means a building or portion thereof 
containing three or more dwelling units and designed for or occupied as the home of three or 
more families living independently of each other. 
Dwelling, single-family.  "Single-family dwelling" means a detached building containing one 
dwelling unit and designed for or occupied by only one family. 
Dwelling, two-family.  "Two-family dwelling" means a building designed for or occupied 
exclusively by two families living independently of each other. 
Dwelling unit means one or more rooms with bathroom and principal kitchen facilities designed 
as a self-contained unit for occupancy by one family for living, cooking and sleeping purposes.  
The existence of a food preparation area within a room or rooms shall be evidence of the 
existence of a dwelling unit. 
Eligible household means a household meeting the income criteria included in Chapter  1376, 
with income determined in a manner consistent with determinations of lower-income households 
and area median income under Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937, as amended (Section 8 
Housing Program). 
Eligible housing nonprofit means a 501(c)3 nonprofit housing organization with the means and 
capacity to guarantee and enforce long-term affordability of affordable housing units meeting the 
requirements of Chapter 1376. 
Emergency shelter means a facility operated by a governmental or nonprofit agency where 
supportive services and shelter are offered to homeless persons. 
Erected means built, constructed, reconstructed, moved upon, or any physical operations on the 
premises required for the building.  Excavations, fill, drainage and the like, shall be considered a 
part of erection when done in conjunction with a structure. 
Essential services means the installation, construction, alteration or maintenance by public 
utilities or governmental agencies of underground, surface or overhead telephone, electrical, gas, 
steam, fuel, or water distribution systems, collections, supply or disposal systems, streets, alleys, 
sidewalks, or trails, including pavement, traffic control devices, signs, poles, wires, mains, 
drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, padmount transformers, fire alarm and police call boxes, 
traffic signals, hydrants and similar accessories in connection therewith which are necessary for 
the furnishing of adequate service by such utilities or governmental agencies for the general 
public health, safety, convenience or welfare.  “Essential services” do not include communication 
antennas and communication towers. 
Essential service structures.  The erection, construction, alteration or maintenance by public 
utilities or governmental agencies of structures not in the right-of-way over 800 cubic feet in area 
including, but not limited to, towers, transmission and subtransmission facilities, or buildings 
related to essential services in all districts. 
Facade means the exterior wall of a building exposed to public view. 
Family means one or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and living as a single 
housekeeping unit, whether or not related to each other by birth or marriage, as distinguished 
from persons occupying a boarding house, lodging house or hotel. 
Fence means a constructed barrier made of wood, metal, stone, brick or any manufactured 
materials erected for the enclosure of yard areas.    



Flood plain, 100 year.  "100 year flood plain" means the lowland areas adjoining inland and 
coastal waters which are identified on Floodway Maps produced by FEMA (Federal Emergency 
Management Agency) and which are estimated to have a one per cent chance of flooding in a 
given year. 
Floor area. See AGross Floor Area@. 
Frontage means the total continuous width of the front lot line. 
Golf course/country club means any golf course, public or private, where the game of golf is 
played, including accessory uses and buildings customary thereto, but excluding golf driving 
ranges and miniature golf courses as a principal use. 
Grade means 

1. For buildings having walls adjoining one street only: the elevation of the public  
sidewalk, top of curb, or centerline of the street right-of-way, whichever is closest to the 
building, where a building wall adjoins a street. 

2. For buildings having walls adjoining more than one street: the average elevation of the 
sidewalks, curbs or centerlines of streets, whichever is closest to the building  walls 
adjoining the streets. 

3. For buildings having no wall adjoining the street: the average of the lowest and  highest 
ground surface elevations in an area within six feet of the foundation line of a building or 
structure.  Any building or structure wall within 35 feet of a public or private street shall 
be considered as adjoining the street.  (See Figure 1-2.) 

Greenbelt means a strip of land of definite width and location upon which existing vegetation is 
preserved or an area is reserved for the planting of living plant materials to serve as an obscuring 
screen or buffer strip in carrying out the requirements of thisCode. 
Grocery store means a retail establishment primarily selling prepackaged and perishable food as 
well as other convenience and household goods.  
Gross floor area (GFA) means the sum of the gross horizontal areas of the several floors of a 
building or structure from the exterior face of exterior walls, or from the centerline of a wall 
separating two buildings, but excluding any space where the floor-to-ceiling height is less than 
six feet. 
Height of building means the vertical distance from the grade to the highest point on a mansard 
or flat roof or to the median height between the eaves and the ridge for gable, hip and gambrel 
roofs.  (See Figure 1-3).  
Home occupation means an accessory use of a dwelling unit for business purposes. 
Impervious surface means any material which prevents, impedes or slows infiltration or 
absorption of storm water directly into the ground at the rate of absorption of vegetation bearing 
soils, including building, asphalt, concrete, gravel and other surfaces. 
Impervious surface ratio means the area of impervious surface less those areas used exclusively 
for pedestrian circulation or outdoor recreational facilities divided by the gross site area. 
Kennel means any lot or premises used for the sale, boarding, or breeding of dogs, cats or other 
household pets or the keeping of five or more dogs or cats in any combination over the age of six 
months. 
Land clearing means: 

1. The clearing of over 8,000 square feet of vegetation from any site, or  
2. The removal of more than 20 trees more than 6 inches in diameter at breast height within 

50 feet of a public or private street or river.   
Mowing, trimming or pruning of vegetation to maintain it in a healthy, viable condition is not 
considered land clearing. 
Landing area means a landing pad, area, strip, deck or building roof used to launch or receive 
aircraft, including, but not limited to, power-driven winged or delta-winged aircraft, gliders, 
balloons and helicopters. 
Landscaping means some combination of planted trees, vines, ground cover, flowers or turf so 
long as a minimum of 80 per cent of the landscape area is covered by living plant material. In 
addition, the combination or design may include rock ground cover, earth mounds, and  such 



structural features as fountains, pools, art works, screens, walls, fences and benches. 
Laundromat means a business that provides home-type washing, drying and/or ironing machines 
for hire to be used by customers on the premises or operated for the benefit of retail customers 
who bring in and call for laundry. 
Lot means a parcel of land occupied or intended for occupancy by a use permitted in this Zoning 
Code, including one principal building together with accessory buildings, open spaces and 
parking areas required by this Zoning Code, and having its principal frontage upon a street or 
upon an officially approved private street.  The word "lot@ includes the words "plot", "tract" or 
"parcel". 
Lodging Facility means a commercial establishment with one or more buildings whose primary 
use is to provide temporary overnight accommodations within individual guest rooms or suites to 
the general public for compensation. Accessory uses may include eating places, meeting rooms 
and other similar uses. 
Lot, corner.  "Corner lot" means a lot which has at least two contiguous sides abutting on and at 
the intersection of two or more streets. 
Lot of record means a lot whose existence, location and dimensions have been legally recorded 
or registered in a deed or on a plat.   
Lot, through.  AThrough lot@  means an interior lot having frontage on two more or less parallel 
streets. 
Lot width means the horizontal distance between side lot lines measured parallel to the front lot 
line at the minimum required front setback line. 
Manufacturing means the production of articles for use from raw or prepared materials by 
giving these materials new forms, qualities, properties or combinations, whether by hand labor or 
machine. 
Marina means a commercial mooring, berthing, or docking facility for watercraft with or without 
provisions for launching, haulout, servicing, fueling or sales of accessory supplies. 
Mechanical amusement arcade means any place, premises, room or establishment in which a 
substantial and significant portion of the business is devoted to the operation of mechanical 
amusement devices, or in which more than five mechanical amusement devices are located and 
available for operation.  For purposes of this Zoning Code, a mechanical amusement arcade shall 
not include the following: 

1. Mechanical amusement devices located in bars, taverns and cocktail lounges which are 
properly licensed by the State when the devices are located so as to be an integral part of 
the licensed operation and are available only to tavern patrons; and 

2. Mechanical amusement devices located in motels or hotels when the devices are generally 
available only to registered guests. 

Mechanical amusement device means any machine which, upon the insertion of a coin, slug, 
token, plate or disk, or upon payment of a price, may be operated by the public generally for use 
as a game, entertainment or amusement, including, but not limited to, games registering a score; 
electronic video games; mechanical and/or electronic devices, such as marble machines, pinball 
machines, mechanical grab machines, shuffle board game machines, pool tables and billiard 
tables; and all game operations or transactions similar thereto, whether operated by hand, electric 
power or a combination thereof.  "Mechanical amusement device" shall not include: 

1. A juke box or other similar device which plays only music for money; 
2. A full-size bowling lane or alley; 
3. A movie theater seating more than ten persons; and  
4. A vending machine dispensing food, drink, tobacco, toys or written material, which 

material can be utilized away from the premises where the machine is located and does 
not require further participation by the person inserting the item or paying the price at the 
location of the machine.  A mechanical  amusement device located on property used 
solely for a residential purpose or a private club, which device is not available for use by 
the general public, shall be exempt from this definition. 

Medical Marihuana means marihuana as defined by the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act., 



MCL 333.26421 et seq. grown, used, or transferred for “medical use” as defined by the Michigan 
Medical Marihuana Act., MCL 333.26421 et seq. 
Medical Marihuana Collective means a use where Medical Marihuana is transferred, pursuant to 
the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act., MCL 333.26421 et seq. 
Medical Marihuana Cultivation means a use where Medical Marihuana is grown as permitted 
by the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act., MCL 333.26421 et seq. 
Medical Marihuana Cultivation Facility means a use where more than 72 plants are being 
cultivated on a Parcel. 
Microbrewery means a facility as defined as such by the State of Michigan.   
Non-conforming use means a lawful use of land that does not comply with the use regulations 
for its zoning district but which complied with applicable regulations at the time the use was 
established. 
Nursing home.  See “Residential care and treatment facility”. 
Open space, common.  "Common open space" means land within or related to a development, 
not individually owned that is designed and intended for the common use or enjoyment of the 
residents and their guests of the development and may include such complementary structures 
and improvements as are necessary and appropriate. 
Operator of Medical Marihuana Collective means any person who is employed by or otherwise 
involved in the operation of a Medical Marihuana Collective.   
Ordinary high water mark means the line between upland and bottomland which persists 
through successive changes in water levels, below which the presence and action of the water is 
so common or recurrent that the character of the land is marked distinctly from the upland and is 
identified along Grand Traverse Bay and the lower Boardman River as elevation 581.04 feet 
USGS. 
Owner means any person having an ownership interest in a premises as shown on the latest 
Traverse City tax records. 
Parcel.  See a “lot”. 
Parking area means any public or private area, under or outside of a building or structure,  
designed and used for parking motor vehicles, including parking lots,  driveways and legally  
designated areas of public streets. 
Parking area, commercial.  "Commercial parking area" means a tract of land which is used for 
the storage of motor vehicles, which is not accessory to any other use on the same or any other lot 
and which contains parking space rented to the general public or reserved for individuals by the 
hour, day, week or month. 
Parking area, off-street. "Off street parking area" means a land surface or facility providing 
vehicular parking spaces off of a street together with drives and maneuvering lanes so as to 
provide access for entrance and exit for the parking of motor vehicles. 
Parking area, private.  "Private parking area" means a parking area for the exclusive use of the 
owners, tenants, lessees, or occupants of the lot on which the parking area is located or their 
customers, employees, or whomever else they permit to use the parking area. 
Parking area, public.  "Public parking area" means a publicly owned or controlled parking area 
available to the public, with or without payment of a fee. 
Parking space means an area of land provided for vehicles exclusive of drives, aisles, or 
entrances giving access thereto, which is fully accessible for parking of permitted vehicles. 
Parking structure means a building or structure consisting of more than one level and used to 
store motor vehicles. 
Pavement.  "Pavement" and "paved" mean permanent and completely covered with concrete, a 
bituminous surface, brick or other surface approved by the Planning Director. 
Pedestrian scale means design and construction considerations based upon the scale of a human 
being which imbue occupants and users of the built environment with a sense of comfort and 
security. 
Person means a corporation, association, partnership, trust, firm or similar activity as well as an 
individual. 



Place of worship means a building wherein persons regularly assemble for religious worship and 
which is maintained and controlled by a religious body organized to sustain public worship, 
together with all accessory buildings and uses customarily associated with such primary purpose. 
Planning director means the head of the City Planning and Zoning Department or the designee 
of that person. 
Plat means a map of a subdivision of and recorded with the Register of Deeds pursuant to State 
statute 
Primary Caregiver means a primary caregiver with a registry identification card as defined by 
the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act., MCL 333.26421 et seq. 
Principal use means the main use of land or structures as distinguished from a secondary or 
accessory use. 
Public utility means any person, firm or corporation, municipal department, board or 
commission duly authorized to furnish and furnishing under federal, state or municipal 
regulations to the public; gas, steam, electricity, sewage disposal, communication, telephone, 
telegraph, transportation or water.  
Qualifying Patient means a qualifying patient with a registry identification card as defined by the 
Michigan Medical Marihuana Act., MCL 333.26421 et seq. 
R-District means a residence district, namely an RC, R-1a, R-1b, R-2, R-9, R-15, and R-29 
district.  
Recreational facilities means a public or private non-profit facility for athletic activities such as 
ice arenas, stadiums, indoor sports arenas, community recreation centers, indoor and outdoor 
swimming pools buildings or grounds, excluding amusement parks where a variety of sport or 
exercise activities are offered. 
Recreational vehicle means a vehicle primarily designed and used as a temporary living quarters 
for recreational, camping, or travel purposes including a vehicle having its own motor power or a 
vehicle mounted on or drawn by another vehicle.    
Residential Care and Treatment Facility means a facility providing:  

1. Services, programs and temporary shelter for residents who are undergoing alcohol or 
substance abuse rehabilitation; 

2. Temporary emergency shelter and services for battered individuals and their children in a 
residential structure.      

Restaurant, family means an establishment where food and drink are prepared and served to 
seated customers.  Customer turnover rates are typically less than one hour. Generally, these 
establishments serve breakfast, lunch, and dinner and sometimes are open 24 hours a day.  It may 
include cafeteria-style facilities. 
Restaurant, fast food means an establishment where food and drink are served to customers at a 
counter.  Such establishments may or may not have seating facilities.  Generally, food and drink 
is ordered and taken to be consumed outside the restaurant building.   
Restaurant, fine means an establishment where food and drink are prepared and served. 
Customer turnover rates are typically one hour or longer.  Such establishments serve dinner but 
generally do not serve breakfast and may or may not serve lunch or brunch. 
Right-of-way means a public or private street, alley or easement permanently established for the 
passage of persons or vehicles. 
Rooming house means a residential building where rooms or suites of rooms are rented where 
the renters use common facilities, such as hallways and bathrooms.  A rooming house shall not 
include lodging facilities, apartment houses, two and multi-family dwellings or fraternity and 
sorority houses. 
School means an educational institution under the sponsorship of a private or public agency 
providing elementary or secondary curriculum, and accredited or licensed by the State of 
Michigan; but excluding profit-making private trade or commercial schools. 
Screen means a structure providing enclosure and a visual barrier between the area enclosed and 
the adjacent property.  A screen may also be non-structured, consisting of shrubs or other 
growing materials. 



Screen, opaque means a masonry wall, fence sections, earthen berm, evergreen hedge or a 
combination of these elements which completely interrupt visual contact and provide spatial 
separation. 
Setback means the distance required between a lot line and a building wall. 
Setback, front.  AFront setback@ means the minimum required distance, extending the full lot 
width, between the principal building and the front lot line. 
Setback, rear.  ARear setback@ means the minimum required distance, extending the full lot 
width, between the principal and accessory buildings and the lot line opposite the front line. 
Setback, side. ASide setback@ means the minimum required distance, extending from the front 
setback to the rear setback, between the principal and accessory building and the side lot line. 
Site diagram means a drawing, drawn to scale, showing the location of buildings and structures 
on a lot, as well as driveways, curb cuts, alleys, streets, easements and utilities.  See Appendix 1, 
Figure 1-4.  
Site plan means a plan showing all salient features of a proposed development, so that it may be 
evaluated in order to determine whether it meets the provisions of this Code. 
Stop work order means an administrative order which directs a person not to continue, or not to 
allow the continuation of an activity which is in violation of this Code.  

Street means any public way, such as a public street, avenue or boulevard, at least 16 feet wide.  
Street does not mean "alley".  See also “Private street”. 
Street, access.  "Access street" means a street or alley designed primarily to provide access to 
properties. 
Street, arterial.  "Arterial street" means a street designed to carry high traffic volumes through 
the community. 
Street, collector.  "Collector street" means a street designed to carry moderately high traffic 
volumes from arterial and access streets. 
Street, private.  "Private street" means an officially approved thoroughfare, other than a public 
street or alley, permanently reserved as the principal means of access to abutting property. 
Structural alterations means any change in a building requiring a building permit. 
Structure means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a more or less 
permanent location on the ground or an attachment to something having a permanent location on 
the ground, including, but not limited to, freestanding signs, billboards, back stops for tennis 
courts and pergolas. 
Tourist home means a single-family dwelling owned and occupied by a person renting out not 
more than three rooms for compensation to persons who do not stay for more than seven 
consecutive days. 
Townhouse means a multiple dwelling in which each dwelling unit shares a common wall with 
at least one other dwelling unit and in which each dwelling unit has living space on the ground 
floor and has a separate ground-floor entrance.      
Trailer means any enclosure used for living, sleeping, business or storage purposes, having no 
foundation other than wheels, blocks, skids, jacks, horses or skirtings, and which has been or 
reasonably may be equipped with wheels or devices for transporting the enclosure from place to 
place.  "Trailer" includes motor homes, travel trailers and camper vans. 
Transit center means a fixed location where passengers interchange from one route or vehicle to 
another that has significant infrastructure such as a waiting room, benches, restrooms, sales 
outlet, ticket or pass vending machines and other services. 
Transitional housing means a facility which is operated by a government or a nonprofit agency 
providing interim sleeping and bath accommodations; interim eating and cooking facilities; and 
professional services to assist individuals or families in locating permanent housing. 
Treelawn means the area of public right-of-way lying between the curb line of a curbed Street or 
developed travelway of a noncurbed street and the nearest private property line substantially 
parallel to said street. 
Trip end means the total of all motor vehicle trips entering plus all motor vehicle trips leaving a 
designated land use or building over a given period of time. 



Vacation Home Rental means a commercial use of a dwelling where the dwelling is rented or 
sold for any term less than 30 consecutive days. 
Yard means an open space at grade between a building and the adjoining lot lines, unoccupied 
and unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground upward, except as otherwise 
provided in this Zoning Code.  
Yard, front.  "Front yard" means all land extending across the width of a property and lying 
between the building line and the front lot line. 
Yard, rear.  "Rear yard" means all land extending across the width of the property and lying 
between the building and the rear lot line. 
Yard, side.  "Side yard" means all land lying between a principal building and the side lot lines 
and extending from the front to the rear of the principal building. 
Zoning Code means Part 13, Title One of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Traverse City 
and includes the text of this Zoning Code as well as all maps, tables, graphics, schedules as 
included or attached as enacted or subsequently amended. 
 
The effective date of this Ordinance is the ________ day of ______________, 2014. 
 

I hereby certify the above ordinance amendment was 
introduced on ____________________, 2014, at a regular 
meeting of the City Commission and was enacted on 
_______________________, 2014, at a regular meeting of 
the City Commission by a vote of Yes: ____ No: ___ at the 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman 
Avenue,  Traverse City, Michigan. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Michael Estes, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that a notice of adoption of the above 
ordinance was published in the Traverse City Record Eagle, a 
daily newspaper published in Traverse City, Michigan, on 
___________________________. 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Benjamin C. Marentette, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 6 

    
 Agenda Item No. 5C  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  August 5, 2014 
 
                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 
 

SUBJECT: 2014/15 Street Projects   
 

                 DATE:  July 31, 2014 
 
The purpose of reviewing the street projects is for the Planning Commission to provide early input.  
Your guidance for reviewing the projects is the City Master Plan.  The Commission initially reviewed the 
proposed projects at the May 20 meeting. 
 
Following the Planning Commission’s review, notices with project information were mailed to the 
residents and occupants along these streets.  Staff reviewed the input from the public and the 
approved budget allocations for the streets.   Due to budgetary limits and complexities associated with 
Seventh Street and 11th Street on the block where Saint Francis School is located, staff  decided to 
delay work on Seventh Street and the 100 Block of E. 11th Street for the 2014/15 budget cycle.  Staff 
also has made recommendations regarding the streets in terms of street widths, sidewalks, etc.  The 
Planning Commission is now being asked to determine if the proposed street projects are consistent 
with the Master Plan in terms of location, extent and character.   
 
The streets identified for reconstruction are: 
 
State Street between Boardman and Railroad;  Franklin Street between Front and Washington; Ninth 
Street between Union and Pine;  Eleventh Street between Cass and Lake;  Union Street between 
Sixteenth and Boughey and; Plainview entire length 

 

 



Page 2 of 6 

 
      

State Street 
The section of street proposed for 
reconstruction falls within the 
Master Plan’s Traditional (TC-3) 
neighborhood where more formal 
streets with sidewalks are typical.  
Initially, a 32-foot wide street was 
proposed to maintain its current 
width.  New 8” sanitary sewer will 
be installed in the 400 block. 
Stormwater catch basins and 
castings will be replaced. Three 
handicap sidewalk ramps will be 
replaced to meet current 
standards.  Poor sections of the 
six-foot sidewalk will be replaced.  
The street carries 1785 vehicles 

per day.  Traffic island at the western end is to remain.  Just east of the project area, the 24-hour traffic 
count in July 2013 was 1387. 
 
13 feedback forms were received, 10 support the project, 2 do not support, and 1 could not answer the 
question because they had questions 
 
4 responses supported street narrowing, 1 did not support narrowing, and 3 responses requested bike 
lanes 
 
Recommendation: Proposal as described above, except for rebuilding the street at a width of 30’ 
instead of 32’. No bike lanes are planned. 

 
Franklin Street 
This section of street proposed for 
reconstruction falls mostly within 
a TC-3 Neighborhood.  North of 
the alley, north of State Street falls 
with the TC-5 Neighborhood. The 
street is a 30 foot wide curbed 
street with 5 to 6 foot wide 
sidewalks on both sides. The 200 
Block of Franklin Street 24-hour 
traffic count was 708.  The 
proposal is to replace the street at 
the current width with new curbs.  
Sidewalks sections in a poor state 
of repair will be replaced. 2 
feedback forms were received, all 
in support of the project 



Page 3 of 6 

This section of street proposed for reconstruction falls mostly within the Master Plan’s Traditional (TC-
3) Neighborhood type.  North of the alley, north of State Street falls with the Master Plan’s Downtown 
(TC-5) Neighborhood type. The street is a 30 foot wide curbed street with 5 to 6 foot wide sidewalks on 
both sides. The 200 Block of Franklin Street 24-hour traffic count was 708.   

 
Recommendation: Proposal as outlined above with no changes. 
 
 
 

Seventh Street 
The section of street proposed for 
reconstruction falls mostly within 
the Master Plan’s Traditional (TC-
3) Neighborhood.  The far eastern 
end of the project just west of 
Union Street falls within the 
Master Plan’s Downtown (TC-5) 
Neighborhood.  The street is 
proposed to remain at its current 
30 foot width. The project includes 
replacement of 1200’ of 6” water 
main with a 16 to 20” water main 
and new copper service lines. 
Three stormwater catch basins will 
be replaced. Sections of the 6-foot 
wide sidewalk in poor condition 

are proposed to be replaced.  The bold crosswalk markings at Pine Street are proposed to be 
repainted. A speed count taken over several days in June, 2013 revealed that 95% of the drivers were 
traveling at speeds 29 mph or less on the block between Wadsworth and Oak Streets.  The 24-hour 
weekday count was 1, 794.  On the weekend the count dropped to 915 vehicles for a 24-hour count. 
 
7 feedback forms were received, 4 in support and 3 made general comments and did not indicate 
whether they supported or opposed the project 
 
Considerations were given for neck downs and/or more pronounced pedestrian crosswalk markings 
near the school and adjusting the street width to allow parking on both sides of the street. Currently, 
parking is restricted to one side due to its narrow width for an emergency route.  Consideration was 
also given to narrow the width of the street.  The street is overly wide for two lanes of traffic with 
parking allowed only on one side. 
 
There has been recent discussion whether 7th Street should be converted to a two-way street, and if 
so, should 8th Street be converted as well to a two way street.  
  
Recommendation: Delay the street work until the 2015/16 budget cycle to allow for further 
discussions with TCAPS and the neighborhood regarding a more comprehensive planning effort for 
Seventh Street. 
 



Page 4 of 6 

Ninth Street 
This street section falls mostly 
within the Master Plan’s 
Traditional (TC-3) Neighborhood 
type.  The eastern end near Union 
Street falls within the Master 
Plan’s Downtown (TC-5) 
Neighborhood type.  Just west of 
the project limits the 24-hour 
vehicle count was 873.   
 
The proposal is to replace the 
street in its current 28-foot wide 
width.   Curbs will be replaced and 
sections of sidewalks in poor state 
of repair will be replaced.  The 
project includes the replacement 

of the existing 6” water main with an 8” water main. Four stormwater catch basins will be replaced. 
The sidewalk ramp at Locust will be replaced to meet current standards. Four street trees will be 
replaced. 
 
4 feedback forms were received, all in support of the project.   
 
Recommendation: Proposal as outlined above with no changes. 
 
 
 
Eleventh Street 

This street segment falls within the 
Master Plan’s Traditional (TC-3) 
neighborhood type. The 36-foot wide 

street was initially proposed to be replaced at its current width.  
 
The project includes the replacement of 1450’ of 6” water main with 8” water main. Four stormwater 
catch basins and two storm manhole castings will be replaced. Curbs will be replaced as will the poor 
sections of sidewalks. The marked crosswalks will be repainted. The average 24-hour traffic count in 
June 2013 was 1043. 



Page 5 of 6 

 
4 feedback forms were received, all in support of the project. Two respondents supported narrower 
the street, with one of those respondents requesting traffic calming measures.  
 

 
Recommendations: 

 
Delay working the 100 Block of East 11th Street due to budget constraints and to determine if 
school’s planned exterior improvements can be coordinated with the street project and; to 
determine the school’s capabilities to clearing snow from the walks where curb extensions have 
been considered at the block ends and midblock. 
 
For the 200 Block of East 11th Street implement the proposal as outlined above, except that the 
street width be reduced by six feet to 30’.  Project is recommended to be delayed to determine if 
project participation from GTACS/St. Francis for site improvements in the tree lawn area are 
recommended. High visibility crosswalks near the school are proposed. 
 
 
 
 

Union Street 
The project area includes two 
Master Plan neighborhood types, 
Traditional (TC-3) in the lower 
section and Contemporary (TC-2) 
south of 17th Street.   
 
The initial proposal was to replace 
the street in its current width of 32 
feet, replace the water main, 
replace five storm sewer catch 
basin castings and three manhole 
castings, and add sidewalks where 
there are gaps.  Approximately, 
785 linear feet of new sidewalk is 
proposed on the east side only 
where the street has a steep 

grade.   
 

7 feedback forms were received, 6 support the project, and 1 does not support the project. 
 
5 of 7 respondents did not support narrowing the street 

 
Recommendation:  Proposal as described above, except for rebuilding the street at a width of 27 feet 
instead of 32 feet and to install a sidewalk on the east side of the street. 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 6 

 
 
 
 

Plainview Street   
The dead-end street has 17 homes fronting the 
street and is within the Master Plan’s (TC-4) 
Corridor Neighborhood.  According to the 
Traverse City Master Plan this neighborhood type 
is envisioned to have a network of sidewalks and 
trails are envisioned. 
 

The proposal is to pave the 26-foot wide gravel 
street with asphalt 24 feet wide.  No utility work is 
planned. The existing sanitary sewer and water 
main are old, but in good condition. No sidewalks 
or curbing are proposed. There are two Chinese 
Elm trees at 1212 Plainview that are very close to 
the street and may need to be removed. Another 
Chinese Elm tree at the east end of Plainview by 
the airport fence may also need to be removed. 
 
6 feedback forms were received, all in support of the project, 2 opposed sidewalks. 
 
Recommendation:  Proposal as described above (no sidewalks or curbs), except for the addition of a 
hammerhead turn around at the end (“T” shape) to facilitate turning around a snow plow truck or 
grader at the east end of the street.  Green infrastructure is planned pending underground utility 
review. 
 
 
 
 
 
If you find the 2015 Street projects are consistent with the City Master Plan in terms of extent, location 
and character, the following motion would be appropriate: 
 
I move that the 2015 Street Projects as described and recommended in this memo dated July 31, 
2014 are consistent with the City Master Plan in terms of extent, location and character. 
 
 
RS 
 
 







 Chapter 1377 
Accessory Dwelling Units Overlay Districts 

 
The purpose of the Accessory Dwelling Units Overlay Districts in certain areas of the City is to 
permit small secondary dwellings on single-family zoned parcels to help owners pay expenses, 
making the house itself more affordable, increase the efficiency of developed land and provide 
additional housing options.  
 
This chapter would be deleted and incorporated in Section 1332.01 Uses Allowed (R-1a and R-
1b) Single-Family Dwelling Districts. 
 
1377.01 DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT.    
These regulations apply to the Traverse Heights neighborhood. See Traverse Heights 
neighborhood boundary map below: 
 

 
 
1377.02 CONDITIONS.  
A land use permit for an accessory dwelling unit may be issued if the following conditions are 
met and continue to be met during the life of the accessory dwelling unit: 
 
1332.01 USES ALLOWED 
The following uses of land and buildings, together with accessory uses, are allowed in the Single 
Family districts:   

Traverse Heights neighborhood 



• Accessory Dwelling Units 
(1) The existing site and use are substantially in compliance with this Zoning Code. 
(2) There shall be a maximum limit of five (5) Accessory Dwelling Units per calendar 

year. 
(3) The accessory dwelling unit is allowed only on a lot having at least 5,000 square 

feet. 
(4) Only one accessory dwelling unit per parcel is allowed with a maximum of 2 

dwellings per parcel. 
(5) Access to an upper story accessory dwelling unit must be internal to the building 

structure.    
(6) The accessory dwelling unit is clearly incidental to the principal dwelling unit and 

the structures’ exteriors appear to be single-family. No alteration to the exterior of 
the residential dwelling, accessory building or yard that alters the single-family 
residential character of the premises is permissible. 

(7) The orientation of the accessory dwelling unit shall, to the extent practical, 
maintain the privacy of residents in adjoining dwellings, as determined by the 
physical characteristics surrounding the accessory dwelling unit, including 
landscape screening, fencing and window and door placement.   

(8) For new buildings or buildings that will be externally modified where such 
modification requires a building permit, If the accessory dwelling unit’s primary 
entrance is not the same as that of the principal dwelling unit, it shall be made less 
visible from the street view than the main entrance of the principal dwelling unit.  

(9) Individual site plans, floor plans, elevation drawings and building plans for both 
the proposed accessory dwelling unit and the subsequent reconversion to 
conventional single-family residence shall be submitted with the application for a 
land use permit.  Any construction of an accessory dwelling unit shall meet all 
design and building code requirements. 

(10) The accessory dwelling unit may not exceed forty percent of the total floor area of 
the principal dwelling unit including the garage. The interior staircase of the 
accessory dwelling unit is not included in the total floor area. 

(11) The accessory dwelling unit must have at least 250 square feet of gross floor area 
per dweller.  

(12) The dwelling unit that is rented shall not be leased for less than twelve months at 
a time. 

(13) All off-street parking facilities shall be behind or to the side of the primary 
dwelling and shall be paved.  The petitioner must submit a site diagram indicating 
the location of proposed off-street parking.   

(14) At least one owner of record shall occupy either the primary dwelling unit or the 
accessory dwelling unit.  The owner occupant shall meet the requirements for a 
minimum sixty percent principal residence tax exemption.  

(15) An accessory dwelling unit shall meet all applicable requirements of the Traverse 
City Code of Ordinances. 

(16) Prior to issuing a land use permit, the Planning Director shall notify, ten days in 
advance by first class mail, abutting property owners so that they may provide 
input on the pending request to the Planning Director. 

(17) The accessory dwelling unit shall be discontinued and the property shall be 
brought into full compliance with the use requirements of this Zoning Code if any 
of the above conditions are not met. 

 



1374.03 MOTOR VEHICLE PARKING.  
(d) Requirements.  The number of required off-street parking spaces shall be  provided by a 

property owner according to the following schedule.  All requirements are minimum unless 
otherwise noted. 

 
 

 Residential        1 per dwelling unit* 
 
 Specialized Housing  
 Adult foster care home    1 per three residents 
 Child care center     1 per ten children 
 Residential care and treatment facilities  1 per three beds 
 Independent living     1 per unit 
 
 Institutions 
 High schools, colleges    3 per 10 students  
 All other schools     1.5 per classroom 
 Places of worship      1 per 4 seats in main area of worship 
 Hospitals      1 per 400 square feet gross floor area 
 Governmental offices, post offices   1 per 400 square feet 
 Auditoriums (excluding schools)   1 per 3 seats 
 
 Commercial 
 Office, financial institutions, retail   1 per 350 square feet gross floor area 

 (Max. 1 per 150 sq. feet)  
 Medical office      1 per 300 square feet gross floor area 

 (Max. 1 per 150 sq. feet) 
 Furniture, antique and bicycle shops   1 per 850 square feet gross floor area 
 Theaters      1 per 3 seats 
 Restaurants   Family    0.4 per seat   (alt. 2 for every 5 seats) 
    Fine / Banquet Halls/ Fast Food   0.7 per seat   (alt. 3 for every 4 seats)  
 Lodging facilities     1 per room or suite 
 Marinas      1 per boat slip 
 Grocery, hardware /all other uses   1 per 325 square feet gross floor area  
 
 Industrial 
 Office        1 per 350 square feet gross floor area 
 Assembly/ Warehouse/Manufacturing  1 per 600 square feet gross floor area 
 
 * No parking is required for Accessory Dwelling Units 



    
 Agenda Item No. 6C  

 

  Communication to the Planning Commission 
 
FOR THE MEETING OF:  August 5, 2014 

                FROM:  Russ Soyring, Planning Director 

 SUBJECT: Parking Regulation Committee  

                 DATE:  August 1, 2014 

 
In 2012, the Planning Commission discussed establishing a Parking Committee to discuss 
creating a “comprehensive parking plan”.  A comprehensive parking plan would include but not 
be limited to topics such as: an account of all current parking land use; parking space 
requirements; use, value and opportunity costs when requiring off-street parking; need and 
potential sites for parking decks; neighborhood on-street parking and bicycle parking. 
 
Parking is a topic that comes up almost daily in the Planning Department. Just last month, the 
Planning Commission was asked to discuss overnight parking in the City.  
 
Formation of the Parking Regulation Committee could include at least one Planning 
Commissioner, one City Staff and three citizens at large.  The deliverable from the Parking 
subcommittee to the Planning Commission will be: a comprehensive parking plan with 
recommendations for parking improvements in Traverse City to be discussed and possibly 
approved for forwarding to the City Commission.  
 
If you are in agreement with the establishment of the Comprehensive Parking Committee that 
includes Planning Commission representation, the following motion would be appropriate: 
 

That the Parking Regulation Committee, a committee of the Planning 
Commission, be established to deliver a comprehensive parking plan with 
recommendations to the planning commission. 
 

 



































































 
The City of Traverse City 
 
      Code Enforcement 
 
 
 
 
 
QUARTERLY REPORT  FOR MAY-JULY 2014 
MIKE TROMBLEY CEO 
 
COMPLAINTS for 2014    MAY (14-31)   JUNE   JULY( 1-17)  

     
Lawns    3    20  5  
Sign Violations    2    1  0  
Sidewalk Café 
Inspections 

   2    6  5  

Brush/ Streets Dpt.     2    17  4  
Parking violations    3    13  8  
Neighbor Disputes    5    8  3  
Street Performer 
inspections/compl. 

   1    4  1  

Commissioner/Mayor 
Complaints 

   1    4  4  

Chickens    1    1  0  
Trash/garbage/junk    4    9  4  
Smoking Violation    2    0  0  
Dilapidated 
Homes/buildings  

   1    5  0  

Food Trucks/Vendors    3    0 0  
Noise    1    0 0  
Health/Safety     1    6 0  
News Racks    0    2 0  
DDA issues/complaints    0    4 8  

     
TOTALS   32   100 41  
 
 
The above chart shows the type and amount of each complaint that was handled. No citations were issued, only 
warnings, as almost all violations were corrected after one warning. I have not begun to do any Rental Housing 
Inspections, however will be sending out letters this week to schedule and begin the weekly inspections. 
Approximately 90% of the above complaints were call generated, and 10% self initiated.  
 

Governmental Center 
400 Boardman Ave 
Traverse City MI 49684 
(231) 922-4414 
www.traversecitymi.gov 


	2014_0805PlanningAgenda
	2014_0701PlanningMinutes
	2014_0715PlanningMinutesStudy
	Alley Vacation Eighth and Fair Updated
	Bonnie Adams alley map
	Recreational Facilities public hearing
	Rec facility Use Amendments
	1320.07 Recreation facility definition
	Street Projects 2015 Staff Recommendation
	808 Carver rezoning letter
	808 Carver map
	ADU amendment
	Parking SubcommitteeEstablishment
	Beckett and Raeder invite
	7th Street Adrienne letter
	MX-2300N_20140801_164908
	MX-2300N_20140801_164922

	Adrienne Rossi Central Grade School comments_sm
	MX-2300N_20140715_160024
	MX-2300N_20140715_160152
	MX-2300N_20140715_160318

	Quarterly report May- July 2014

